Managing Power Units using the SDMC



REFERENCE 86 A1 10FH 01

ESCALA Power7

Managing Power Units using the SDMC

The ESCALA Power7 publications concern the following models:

- Bull Escala E5-700 (Power 750 / 8233-E8B)
- Bull Escala M6-700 (Power 770 / 9117-MMB)
- Bull Escala M6-705 (Power 770 / 9117-MMC)
- Bull Escala M7-700 (Power 780 / 9179-MHB)
- Bull Escala M7-705 (Power 780 / 9179-MHC)
- Bull Escala E1-700 (Power 710 / 8231-E2B)
- Bull Escala E1-705 (Power 710 / 8231-E1C)
- Bull Escala E2-700 / E2-700T (Power 720 / 8202-E4B)
- Bull Escala E2-705 / E2-705T (Power 720 / 8202-E4C)
- Bull Escala E3-700 (Power 730 / 8231-E2B)
- Bull Escala E3-705 (Power 730 / 8231-E2C)
- Bull Escala E4-700 / E4-700T (Power 740 / 8205-E6B)
- Bull Escala E4-705 (Power 740 / 8205-E6C)

References to Power 755 / 8236-E8C models are irrelevant.

Hardware

October 2011

BULL CEDOC 357 AVENUE PATTON B.P.20845 49008 ANGERS CEDEX 01 **FRANCE**

REFERENCE 86 A1 10FH 01 The following copyright notice protects this book under Copyright laws which prohibit such actions as, but not limited to, copying, distributing, modifying, and making derivative works.

Copyright © Bull SAS 2011

Printed in France

Suggestions and criticisms concerning the form, content, and presentation of this book are invited. A form is provided at the end of this book for this purpose.

To order additional copies of this book or other Bull Technical Publications, you are invited to use the Ordering Form also provided at the end of this book.

Trademarks and Acknowledgements

We acknowledge the right of proprietors of trademarks mentioned in this book.

The information in this document is subject to change without notice. Bull will not be liable for errors contained herein, or for incidental or consequential damages in connection with the use of this material.

Contents

anaging power units	1
anaging power unit connections	
Viewing the bulk power assembly status	
Requesting, revoking, and verifying power unit connections	
Requesting connection access	
Revoking connection access	
Verifying connection access	
Servicing the power units	
Viewing the status of power units	
Replacing a FRU	
Performing MES tasks	
Adding a FRU	
Removing a FRU	
Opening an MES	
Closing an MES	
anaging power unit operations	
Initializing the power unit	
Changing power unit passwords	
Changing power unit properties	
Rebuilding the power unit	
Launching Advanced System Manager	
Viewing VLAN network data	
otices	7
ademarks	
rms and conditions	

© Copyright IBM Corp. 2011 iii

Managing power units

Power units can be managed by using the IBM® Systems Director Management Console (SDMC).

A *power unit*, formerly called a frame or bulk power assembly (BPA), is a power assembly for the processor, memory, flexible service processor (FSP), and I/O enclosures.

Managing power unit connections

You can request a connection to a power unit, revoke an existing connection, and verify the status of connections. You can add or remove a field-replaceable unit (FRU), and you can open or close miscellaneous equipment specification (MES) numbers.

Viewing the bulk power assembly status

You can view the state of the connection from the IBM Systems Director Management Console (SDMC) to side A and side B of the bulk power assembly (BPA).

To view the status of the bulk power assembly, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to view the status.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Connections** → **Bulk Power Assembly (BPA) Status**. The Connection State column displays the status of the BPA.
- 5. Click **Close** to exit the status page.

Requesting, revoking, and verifying power unit connections

You can request access to a power unit, revoke the existing access connections, and verify the status of the connections.

Requesting connection access

You can allow authorized IBM Systems Director users to access a power unit. Use this procedure to request connection access to the target systems.

To request connection access, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to request access to the target systems.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Security → Request Access.
- 5. On the Request Access page, type the user ID and password to authenticate the users to the target systems, and click **Request Access**. The credentials are created and authenticated to the target system. The **Access** column indicates the status of the request.

Revoking connection access

You can revoke access from the target systems to the power units.

To revoke access to power units, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.

- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to revoke access to the target systems.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Security → Revoke Access.
- 5. Click **OK** in the confirmation window to revoke access. The access state of a power unit is changed to No Access.

Verifying connection access

You can verify whether there is a valid connection between the host and the power unit, and you can verify the credentials.

To verify the connection access for the power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to verify the connection access status.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Security** → **Verify Connection**.
- 5. On the Verify Connection page, select the **Query vital properties** check box if you want to verify the credentials.
- 6. Click Verify Connection. You can view the status of the connection in the Access column.

Servicing the power units

You can replace field-replaceable unit (FRU) in a power unit, and you can open or close miscellaneous equipment specification (MES) numbers.

Viewing the status of power units

You can view the connection status of the power units.

To view the status of the power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab. The Power Systems Resources pane is displayed.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to view the status.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Properties**.
- 5. Click the Active Status tab to view the status of the power unit.

Replacing a FRU

You may need to replace a field-replaceable unit (FRU) as part of an upgrade operation.

To replace a FRU, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to replace the FRU.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Service and Support → Hardware → Exchange FRU.
- 5. On the Exchange FRU page, select the installed enclosure type from the **Installed Enclosure Types** list and click **Go**.
- 6. From the list of FRU types, select the FRU that you want to replace, and click Next.
- 7. Select the location for the FRU from the Location code column, and click **Add**. The FRU and its location are added to the Pending Actions area.
- 8. Click Launch Procedure to begin replacing the FRUs listed in the Pending Actions area.
- 9. Click Finish.

Performing MES tasks

You can add or remove a field-replaceable unit (FRU) to the power unit. You can open and close a miscellaneous equipment specification (MES) number for the power unit.

Adding a FRU:

You can install a new field-replaceable unit (FRU) as part of an upgrade operation.

To add FRUs to the power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to add the FRU.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Service and Support → Hardware → MES Tasks → Add FRU.
- 5. On the Add FRU page, select the installed enclosure type from the Installed Enclosures, and click Go.
- 6. From the list of FRU types, select the FRU that you want to add, and click Next.
- 7. Select the location for the FRU from the Location code column, and click **Add**. The FRU and its location are added to the Pending Actions area.
- 8. Click Launch Procedure to begin adding the FRUs listed in the Pending Actions area.
- 9. Click Finish to complete the procedure.

Removing a FRU:

You can remove the installed field-replaceable unit (FRU) as part of an upgrade operation.

To remove FRUs from the power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to remove the FRU.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Service and Support → Hardware → MES Tasks → Remove FRU.
- 5. On the Remove FRU page, select an enclosure type from the **Installed Enclosures** list, and click **Go**.
- 6. From the list of FRU types, select the FRU that you want to remove from the enclosure, and click **Next**.
- 7. Select the installed FRU location from the Location code column, and click **Add**. The FRU and its location are added to the Pending Actions area.
- 8. Click Launch Procedure to begin removing the FRUs listed in the Pending Actions area.
- 9. Click Finish.

Opening an MES:

You can open a miscellaneous equipment specification (MES) number for the power unit.

To open an MES for the power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to open the MES.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Service and Support → Hardware → MES Tasks → Open MES.
- 5. Click Add MES Order Number.
- 6. Type the MES number, and click **OK**.

Closing an MES:

You can close a miscellaneous equipment specification (MES) number for the power unit.

To close an MES, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to close the MES.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Service and Support → Hardware → MES Tasks → Close MES.
- 5. Select the MES order number that you want to close, and click Next.
- 6. Click Add MES Order Number.
- 7. Click OK.

Managing power unit operations

You can initialize power units, change the power unit password, change power unit properties, rebuild power units, launch the Advanced System Manager (ASM), and view the VLAN network data for the power unit.

Initializing the power unit

You can initialize a power unit.

To initialize power units, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the Resources tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit that you want to initialize.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Operations** → **Initialize power unit**.
- 5. On the Initialize Power unit page, click **OK** to initialize the power unit.

 When you initialize a power unit, the hosts and the I/O units that are associated with the power unit are initialized.

Changing power unit passwords

You can change the password for a power unit.

To change the password for a power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to change the password.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Operations** → **Change Password**.
- 5. On the Change Password page, type your current password in the **Current System Access password** field.
- 6. Type the new password in the **New System Access password** field.
 - The password can be 4 64 characters in length, consist of uppercase letters (A Z), lowercase letters (a z), and numerals (0 9).
- 7. Reenter the new password in the Verify System Access password field.
- 8. Click OK.

Note: After the password is changed, you must update the IBM Systems Director Management Console (SDMC) access password for all other SDMCs from which you want to access this power unit.

Changing power unit properties

You can view and edit the properties of the power unit.

To edit the properties of the power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit that you want to edit.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Edit Power Unit**.
- 5. Click the General tab.
- 6. Edit the **System name** property as required.
- 7. Edit the **Number** property as required.

Notes:

- · You can modify the power unit number only if all the hosts inside the power unit are powered off. Otherwise, the field is disabled.
- The possible values for the power unit number are 1 65535.
- 8. Click OK.

Notes: You can edit only the properties under the General tab. However, you can view the other properties of the power unit.

- Click the Managed Systems tab to view the list of all the hosts associated with the power unit.
- Click the I/O Units tab to view the list of all the I/O units associated with the power unit.

Rebuilding the power unit

You can rebuild the internal representation of a power unit in the IBM Systems Director Management Console (SDMC).

To rebuild a power unit, complete the following steps:

Note: You cannot perform other tasks on the power unit while SDMC rebuilds it.

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit that you want to rebuild.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Operations** → **Rebuild**.
- 5. On the Rebuild page, click **OK**.

Launching Advanced System Manager

You can launch the Advanced System Management (ASM) for a power unit to perform general and administrator-level tasks.

To start the ASM for a power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the Resources tab.
- 2. Click **Power Units** to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to launch ASM.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click Operations → Launch Advanced System Management (ASM).
- 5. On the Launch Advanced System Management (ASM) page, select the IP address to which you want to connect from the Power unit IP Address list. The login window for ASM is displayed.

Viewing VLAN network data

You can view the details of the virtual local area network (VLAN) associated with the power unit, such as switches, ports, and network addresses.

To view the VLAN network details for a power unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. On the Welcome page, click the **Resources** tab.
- 2. Click Power Units to view the list of power units.
- 3. Select the power unit for which you want to view the VLAN network details.
- 4. Right-click the power unit, and click **Service and Support** → **View VLAN Network Data** to view the View VLAN Network Data page.
- 5. Click **Close** to exit the page.

Notices

This information was developed for products and services offered in the U.S.A.

The manufacturer may not offer the products, services, or features discussed in this document in other countries. Consult the manufacturer's representative for information on the products and services currently available in your area. Any reference to the manufacturer's product, program, or service is not intended to state or imply that only that product, program, or service may be used. Any functionally equivalent product, program, or service that does not infringe any intellectual property right of the manufacturer may be used instead. However, it is the user's responsibility to evaluate and verify the operation of any product, program, or service.

The manufacturer may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not grant you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to the manufacturer.

For license inquiries regarding double-byte character set (DBCS) information, contact the Intellectual Property Department in your country or send inquiries, in writing, to the manufacturer.

The following paragraph does not apply to the United Kingdom or any other country where such provisions are inconsistent with local law: THIS INFORMATION IS PROVIDED "AS IS " WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes will be incorporated in new editions of the publication. The manufacturer may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this publication at any time without notice.

Any references in this information to websites not owned by the manufacturer are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those websites. The materials at those websites are not part of the materials for this product and use of those websites is at your own risk.

The manufacturer may use or distribute any of the information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you.

Licensees of this program who wish to have information about it for the purpose of enabling: (i) the exchange of information between independently created programs and other programs (including this one) and (ii) the mutual use of the information which has been exchanged, should contact the manufacturer.

Such information may be available, subject to appropriate terms and conditions, including in some cases, payment of a fee.

The licensed program described in this document and all licensed material available for it are provided by IBM under terms of the IBM Customer Agreement, IBM International Program License Agreement, IBM License Agreement for Machine Code, or any equivalent agreement between us.

Any performance data contained herein was determined in a controlled environment. Therefore, the results obtained in other operating environments may vary significantly. Some measurements may have been made on development-level systems and there is no guarantee that these measurements will be the

© Copyright IBM Corp. 2011

same on generally available systems. Furthermore, some measurements may have been estimated through extrapolation. Actual results may vary. Users of this document should verify the applicable data for their specific environment.

Information concerning products not produced by this manufacturer was obtained from the suppliers of those products, their published announcements or other publicly available sources. This manufacturer has not tested those products and cannot confirm the accuracy of performance, compatibility or any other claims related to products not produced by this manufacturer. Questions on the capabilities of products not produced by this manufacturer should be addressed to the suppliers of those products.

All statements regarding the manufacturer's future direction or intent are subject to change or withdrawal without notice, and represent goals and objectives only.

The manufacturer's prices shown are the manufacturer's suggested retail prices, are current and are subject to change without notice. Dealer prices may vary.

This information is for planning purposes only. The information herein is subject to change before the products described become available.

This information contains examples of data and reports used in daily business operations. To illustrate them as completely as possible, the examples include the names of individuals, companies, brands, and products. All of these names are fictitious and any similarity to the names and addresses used by an actual business enterprise is entirely coincidental.

COPYRIGHT LICENSE:

This information contains sample application programs in source language, which illustrate programming techniques on various operating platforms. You may copy, modify, and distribute these sample programs in any form without payment to the manufacturer, for the purposes of developing, using, marketing or distributing application programs conforming to the application programming interface for the operating platform for which the sample programs are written. These examples have not been thoroughly tested under all conditions. The manufacturer, therefore, cannot guarantee or imply reliability, serviceability, or function of these programs. The sample programs are provided "AS IS", without warranty of any kind. The manufacturer shall not be liable for any damages arising out of your use of the sample programs.

Each copy or any portion of these sample programs or any derivative work, must include a copyright notice as follows:

© (your company name) (year). Portions of this code are derived from IBM Corp. Sample Programs. © Copyright IBM Corp. _enter the year or years_.

If you are viewing this information in softcopy, the photographs and color illustrations may not appear.

Trademarks

IBM, the IBM logo, and ibm.com are trademarks or registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies. A current list of IBM trademarks is available on the Web at Copyright and trademark information at www.ibm.com/legal/copytrade.shtml.

Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies.

Terms and conditions

Permissions for the use of these publications is granted subject to the following terms and conditions.

Personal Use: You may reproduce these publications for your personal, noncommercial use provided that all proprietary notices are preserved. You may not distribute, display or make derivative works of these publications, or any portion thereof, without the express consent of the manufacturer.

Commercial Use: You may reproduce, distribute and display these publications solely within your enterprise provided that all proprietary notices are preserved. You may not make derivative works of these publications, or reproduce, distribute or display these publications or any portion thereof outside your enterprise, without the express consent of the manufacturer.

Except as expressly granted in this permission, no other permissions, licenses or rights are granted, either express or implied, to the publications or any information, data, software or other intellectual property contained therein.

The manufacturer reserves the right to withdraw the permissions granted herein whenever, in its discretion, the use of the publications is detrimental to its interest or, as determined by the manufacturer, the above instructions are not being properly followed.

You may not download, export or re-export this information except in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, including all United States export laws and regulations.

THE MANUFACTURER MAKES NO GUARANTEE ABOUT THE CONTENT OF THESE PUBLICATIONS. THESE PUBLICATIONS ARE PROVIDED "AS-IS" AND WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.